
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         February 6, 2023 
 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – FEBRUARY 6, 2023 

 
RC Conference Center                 Regular Meeting               6:00 PM 

 
Russell County Governmental Center 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 

 
 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (CLOSED) – Legal Matters – Public Service Authority (PSA).  (Executive 
Session will begin at 5 p.m. and closed to the general public.  Citizens are welcome to attend and wait in the boardroom until Executive 
Session is complete.) 
 
INVOCATION   
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 

1. “Resolution and Ordinance Prohibiting the Location and Operation of Abortion Clinics 
Within The Boundaries of Russell County, Virginia.” 

 
PRESENTATION  
 

1. Cuba Porter – Public Service Authority (PSA)  
 

2. Kim Smith – Heart of Appalachia (HOA) – HOA Tourism Report 
 
ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING…………………………………………………………………A-1 
 

1. Election of Chairman 
 

2. Election of Vice-Chairman 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         February 6, 2023 
 

Russell County Page 2 
 

 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors….……………B-1 

 
a. Unapproved minutes of January 3, 2023 
b. Unapproved minutes of January 18, 2023  

        
2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  

for payment……………………………………………………………………………...B-2 
 

3. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration………………………………B-3 
 

Swords Creek Community Center 
 
Lynn Hess     Two-Year Term 
Aleshia Plaster    Two-Year Term 
Jerry Hess     Two-Year Term 
Treca Ray     Two-Year Term 
Cindy Dye     Two-Year Term 
 
Cumberland Plateau Waste Management Authority (CPWMA) 
 
Carl Rhea      Four-Year Term 
 
Spearhead Board of Directors 
 
Vacant     Three-Year Term 
 
Spearhead Trailblazers Board of Directors 
 
Vacant     Three-Year Term      
 

CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 Minutes) 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

1. “Resolution and Ordinance Prohibiting the Location and Operation of                               
Abortion Clinics Within The Boundaries of Russell County, Virginia”………..C-1 
 

 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         February 6, 2023 
 

Russell County Page 3 
 

 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. 2023 VACo & Virginia Rural Center Rural Caucus Reception………….....…….D-1 
 

2. DCR Clinch River State Park Master Plan Meeting (2/15/2023)………………….D-2 
 

3. CPRHA Environmental Review Exemption/Categorically Excluded Projects..D-3  
 

4. VDOT Monthly Road System Report………..………………………………………..D-4 
 

REQUESTS 
  

5. VDOT Notice of Rte. 19 & Rte. 58 Property Abandonment Request…………...D-5 
 

6. DOF Forest Sustainability Fund (FSF) – $5,240.27……………..………………....D-6 
 

7. DCJS VSTOP Grant - $62,009………………………………………………………….D-7 
 

8. Virginia Federation of Humane Societies Animal Award 2023 - $10,000..…….D-8 
 

BOARD DISCUSSIONS & REMINDERS 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
        

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………F 
• RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….G 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... H 
• Castlewood W&S ………………………………………………………………………..I 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….J 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..K 
• Conference Center………………………………………………………………………L 
• RC Fitness Center……………………………………………………………………….M 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...N 
• RC Cannery Reports…………………………………………………………………….O 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..P 
• RC Litter Report………………………………………………………………………….Q   



CLOSED SESSION 
 

Motion made by , second by and duly approved by the 
Board of Supervisors enter into closed session to discuss Legal Matters pursuant to 
Section 2.2-3711(A)(5)(7)(8) – Legal Discussions concerning with the Public Service 
Authority (PSA) concerning pending legal matters. 

The vote was: 
Aye:     
Nay:     

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
Pursuant to §2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, each member of the 
Board of Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only 
public business matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the 
Virginia Freedom of Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were 
identified in the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, 
discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the 
substance of the departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 

Are there any Supervisors who believe a departure has taken place? 

Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, discussed, or considered during the 
closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was 
convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace - 

Lou Ann Wallace - 

Carl Rhea - 

Steve Breeding - 

David Eaton - 

Rebecca Dye - 

Oris Christian - 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 

Motion made by , second by and duly approved by 
the Board of Supervisors to return to regular session. 

The vote was: 
Aye:     
Nay:     



 
  

Russell County Virginia 
“The Heart of Southwest Virginia” 

 
Tim Lovelace  Steve Breeding 
District 1   District 5  
 
Carl Rhea      Lou Ann Wallace, Chairperson Rebecca Dye 
District 3  District 2 District 6 
  
David Eaton   Oris Christian, Vice-Chairman Lonzo Lester 
District 4   At-Large County Administrator 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

  

  

  

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 
The Russell County Board of Supervisors will be holding a Public Hearing 
scheduled for Monday, February 6, 2023, at 6:00 P.M. to hear public 
comments for a “Resolution and Ordinance Prohibiting the Location 
and Operation of Abortion Clinics Within The Boundaries of Russell 
County, Virginia.” 
 
A copy of the proposed “Resolution and Ordinance Prohibiting the 
Location and Operation of Abortion Clinics Within The Boundaries of 
Russell County, Virginia” is available for review in the Office of the County 
Administrator at 137 Highland Drive, Lebanon, Virginia during normal 
business hours.   
 
The Public Hearing will be held in the Russell County Board of 
Supervisors Conference Room at the Russell County Governmental 
Center, 137 Highland Drive, Lebanon, Virginia during the regular February 
2023 Board of Supervisors monthly meeting. 
 

BY ORDER OF THE 

RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
  



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
Board of Supervisors   Information Item  

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

       Meeting: 2/6/23      6:00 PM 
 

 
Public Hearing 
 
1. “Resolution and Ordinance Prohibiting the Location and Operation of Abortion 

Clinics Within The Boundaries of Russell County, Virginia.” 
 

 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Presentation – Informational Only. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

Board Discretion.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 











                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
Board of Supervisors   Information Item  

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

       Meeting: 2/6/23      6:00 PM 
 

 
Presentations  
 
1. Cuba Porter – Public Service Authority (PSA) 

 
2. Kim Smith – Heart of Appalachia (HOA) – HOA Tourism  

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Presentation – Informational Only. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Board Discretion.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
   Board of Supervisors          Action Items 

137 Highland Drive                                         Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

           Meeting: 2/6/23    6:00 PM 
 

 
Organizational Meeting 
 

1. Election of Chairman 
 

2. Election of Vice-Chairman 
 
 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Board Discretion. 
 

Suggested Motion:  
 

Motions Required.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
     Board of Supervisors                       Action Item B-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

          Meeting: 2/6/23       6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

o Unapproved minutes of January 3, 2023 
 

• Unapproved minutes of January 18, 2023 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



January 03, 2023 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Tuesday, January 03, 
2023 at 5:00 pm beginning at 5:00 pm with Executive (closed) Session (to discuss proposed economic 
development and county ordinances) followed by the regular meeting at 6:00 pm at the Russell County 
Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll all by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Carl Rhea 
Oris Christian 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Katie Patton, County Attorney 
Rebekah Campbell, Secretary 
 
Absent: 
 
Rebecca Dye 
 

EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
enter into Executive (closed) Session to discuss legal matters pursuant to Section 2.2-371(A)(5)(7)(8) – 
Legal Discussions concerning the proposed Economic Development Project and County Ordinances. 
. 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
. 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 

 
 



CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (I) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 
 
Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 
the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed, or considered in the meeting by the Board of 
Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (I) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place? Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 
discussed, or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 
closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 
David Eaton – AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Rebecca Dye - ABSENT 
Oris Christian – AYE 
 
 
Invocation by Jacob Musick, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as amended. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 

ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING 
 
NOMINATIONS FOR CHAIRPERSON 
 
Lou Wallace relinquished the Chair to the Clerk of the Board. 
 
Oris Christian nominated Lou Wallace 
David Eaton nominated Steve Breeding 
 

 



Motion made by Oris Christian, second Steve Breeding that nominations cease and call for the vote. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Oris Christian, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None  
 
Steve Breeding – (3) Three votes:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea and Steve Breeding 
Lou Wallace – (3) Three votes:  Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
 
TIE VOTE – MOTION FAILED 
 Lou Wallace continues as Chair until the next meeting. 
 
The Clerk relinquished the Chair back to Lou Wallace. 
 
NOMINATIONS FOR VICE-CHAIRMAN: 
 
Carl Rhea nominated David Eaton 
Tim Lovelace nominated Oris Christian 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton that nominations cease and call for the vote. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Oris Christian and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 
Oris Christian – (3) votes:  Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace and Oris Christian 
David Eaton – (3) votes:  Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding and David Eaton 
 
TIE VOTE – MOTION FAILED 
 Oris Christian continues as Vice-Chairman until the next meeting. 
 

LONZO LESTER APPOINTED AS CLERK OF THE BOARD AND VICKI PORTER AS DEPUTY CLERK 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
re-appoint Lonzo Lester as Clerk of the Board and Vicki Porter as Deputy Clerk for calendar year 2023. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Oris Christian and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 

 
APPROVAL OF ROBERT’S RULES OF ORDER 

 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adopt Robert’s Rules of Order for calendar year 2023. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 



 

APPROVAL OF RUSSELL COUNTY BY-LAWS 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Russell County By-laws. 

Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 
 

APPROVAL OF THE RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
set the regular board meeting schedule for the 1st Monday of the month beginning at 6:00 pm. (with 
exceptions for holidays and closed session). 
 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 
The Chair appointed all the members of the Board to serve on the budget committee, the budget 
meetings will be advertised 
 
New Business 
 

APPROVAL OF THE DECEMBER 05, 2022 MINUTES 

Motion made by David Eaton, and Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the December 05, 2022 minutes as presented and dispense with the reading thereof. 

 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF THE BUDGET MEETING SCHEDULE 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Budget Meeting schedule as presented. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 

Motion made by Oris Christian, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $2,926,860.67, including reoccurring and 
withholdings. 



The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 

CHARLENE BLANKENSHIP, RACHEL HELTON, DOUG LESTER, HAROLD THOMAS, BETTY SUE HESS AND 
MICHELL THARY RE-APPOINTED TO THE DRILL COMMUNITY CENTER COMMITTEE  

Motion made by David Eaton, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to re-
appoint Charlene Blankenship, Rachel Helton, Doug Lester, Harold Thomas, Betty Sue Hess and Michelle 
Tharp to the Drill Community Center Committee for (2) two-year terms, said terms ending December 31, 
2024. 

 The vote was: 
 Aye:  David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Oris Christian and Tim Lovelace 
 Nay:  None 
                      
COUNTY BOARD AND COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 
 
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY APPOINTENT 

 
Steve Breeding nominated Nate Kiser 
Carl Rhea nominated Ron Blankenship 
 
Ron Blankenship – (3): Carl Rhea, Oris Christian and Lou Wallace 
Nate Kiser – (3):  Steve Breeding, David Eaton and Tim Lovelace 
 
TIE VOTE – NO APPOINTEE CHOSEN 
 

SHILOH LYTTLE APPOINTED TO THE HEART OF APPALACHIA TOURISM AUTHORITY 
 

Motion made David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Shiloh Lyttle to the Heart of Appalachia Tourism Authority. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 

AARON FEESER APPOINTED TO THE CUMBERLAND MOUNTAIN COMMUNITY SERVICES BOARD 
 
David Eaton nominated Aaron Feeser 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Arron Feeser to the Cumberland Mountain Community Services Board by acclamation for a (3) 
three-year term, said term ending December 31, 2025. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 



 
Citizens Comment 
 
 The Chair opened citizens’ comment. 
 
Carter McGlothlin, Lebanon asked that he be reinstated to the Russell County PSA, due to the charges 
against him going nowhere. He also stated that he was concerned about being denied the opportunity 
to speak by the Chairman of the PSA at the last meeting. 
 
Charlie Hess, Lebanon asked if the budget meetings were open to the public. 
 
The Chair closed citizens’ comment. 
 
County Attorney Reports and Requests 
 

APPROVAL OF A NEW LEASE FOR THE FINNEY SOLID WASTE SITE 
 
Motion made by Carl Rhea, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the new lease for Finney Solid Waste Site. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ADVERTISE THE ABORTION CLINIC ORDINANCE 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the advertisement of the proposed Abortion Clinic Ordinance. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 
County Administrator Reports and Requests 
 

MOTION TO ABANDON STATE ROUTE 871 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the abandonment of State Route 871. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Oris Christian and Lou Wallace  
Nay:  None 
Abstain:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea and Tim Lovelace       
 
MOTION FAILED                   
 
APPROVAL OF THE DEQ LITTER PREVENTION AND RECYCLING PROGRAM IN THE AMOUNT OF $19,456 



 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding to approve the DEQ Litter Prevention and 
Recycling Program in the amount t of $19,456. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 

 
 

APPROVAL OF THE SOUTHEWEST VA. REGIONAL JAIL AUTHORITY SERVICE AGREEMENT 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Southwest Virginia Regional Jail Authority Service Agreement. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Oris Christian, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF THE PRE-AUTHORIZED LIST OF PAYMENTS 
 

Motion made by David Eaton second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the pre-authorized list of payments for 2023 as presented. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO REPAIR THE GLADE HOLLOW PARK DECK  
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the Glade Hollow Park Deck Repair project at an approximate cost of $10,000 with the Little 
League providing the labor. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Oris Christian, David Eaton and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 

 
APPROVAL TO APPOINT SHILOH LYTTLE AS LIAISON TO THE VIRGINIA AMERICA 250 COMMISSION 

(VA250) 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appoint Shiloh Lyttle as the liaison (and form a committee) to the Virginia America 250 Commission 
(VA250). 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 

 



 
APPROVAL TO ADJOURN TO RECONVENE ON WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 18, 2023 AT 5:00 PM IN 

RICHMOND, VA. 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second by Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn to reconvene on Wednesday, January 18, 2023 at 5:00 pm in Richmond, Virginia. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace and Lou Wallace 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO RECONVENE 
 
The Chair reconvened the meeting in the lobby of the Omni Hotel in Richmond, Virginia on Wednesday, 
January 18, 2023 at 5:00 pm. 
 
Roll Call by the Clerk: 
 
Present: 
 
Steve Breeding 
David Eaton 
Oris Christian 
Rebecca Dye 
Lou Wallace 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
 
Absent: 
 
Tim Lovelace 
Carl Rhea 
 
Board members discussed county projects, grants, funding, etc. with legislators. 
 
The Chair adjourned the meeting  on Friday, January 20, 2023 at 8:45 am. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

                        __________________________            _______________________ 
                        Clerk of the Board                                      Chairperson 
 



 
                                                      Board of Supervisors                         Action Item B-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 2/6/23      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s January 2023 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s January 2023 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s January 2023 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• January 2023 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

















 
Board of Supervisors  Action Item:  B-3 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 2/6/23        6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

      Board Appointments 

 
Swords Creek Community Center 
 
Lynn Hess     Two-Year Term 
Aleshia Plaster    Two-Year Term 
Jerry Hess     Two-Year Term 
Treca Ray     Two-Year Term 
Cindy Dye     Two-Year Term 
 
Cumberland Plateau Waste Management Authority (CPWMA) 
 
Carl Rhea      Four-Year Term 
 
Spearhead Board of Directors 
 
Vacant      Three-Year Term 
 
Spearhead Trailblazers Board of Directors 
 
Vacant      Three-Year Term    
  

  
 

















1ST ViKOtKIA'S

Spearhead Trails

11325 Norton-Coeburn Road

Coeburn, Virginia 24230

www.SpearheadTrails.com

January 9, 2023

Lester Lonzo, County Administrator

Russell County
P. 0. Box 1208

Lebanon; VA 24266

Board Appointment Request - Southwest Regional Recreation Authority, "Spearhead TrailsRE:

Dear Mr. Lonzo:

I am writing for and on behalf of the Southwest Regional Recreation Authority. As you are aware; the Authority

was created by Virginia Code §15.2-6016, et seq. of the Code of Virginia; 1950, as amended, for the purposes of enabling

and facilitating the development and operation of  a system of trail-oriented recreation facilities called the Southwest

Regional Recreation Area for use by off-highway vehicle enthusiasts, equestrians, mountain bicyclists, and others in the

LENOWISCO and Cumberland Plateau Planning District Commissions in the Commonwealth of Virginia, with significant

portions of the recreational trail system being located on private property made available for use through lease, license,

easement or other appropriate legal form by willing landowners.

We are requesting appointment to our Board of Directors of a member from your county. Pursuant to Virginia

Code Section 15.2-6018 (1), "One representative each appointed by the governing body of the City of Norton and the

Counties of Buchanan, Dickenson, Lee, Russell, Scott, Tazewell, and Wise to serve terms of three years." Presently, the

Board requires a new appointment from your locality.

The SRRA Board of Directors is a critical decision-making body for the Authority that has a direct impact on our

region. The organizations goals and objectives are set by the Board and your appointed Board member is your locality's

voice in all the Authority's efforts during his or her tenure.

Please forward your appointment to Cindy Isaacs, Administration Operations Supervisor, Southwest Regional

Recreation Authority, 11325 Norton-Coeburn Road, Coeburn, Virginia 24230.

Thank you in advance for your kind attention and assistance. We look forward to building closer relationships

and increasing outdoor recreation in our region,

Sincerely,
A

or)/
Melissa Rose Slemp
Executive Director

MS/cmi



A’ JSOUTlIWtST VIH

Spearhead Trails

11325 Norton-Coeburn Road

Coeburn, Virginia 24230

www.SpearheadTrails.com

January 9, 2023

Lester Lonzo, County Administrator

Russell County
P. 0. Box 1208

Lebanon, VA 24266

Board Appointment Request -Spearhead TrailblazersRE:

Dear Mr. Lonzo:

1 am writing for and on behalf of the Spearhead Trailblazers. As you are aware, the Southwest Regional

Recreation Authority was created by Virginia Code §15.2-6016, et seq. of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, for the

purposes of enabling and facilitating the development and operation of a system of trail-oriented recreation facilities

called the Southwest Regional Recreation Area for use by off-highway vehicle enthusiasts, equestrians, mountain

bicyclists, and others in the LENOWISCO and Cumberland Plateau Planning District Commissions in the Commonwealth

of Virginia, with significant portions of the recreational trail system being located on private property made available for

use through lease, license, easement or other appropriate legal form by willing landowners.

We are requesting appointment to our Spearhead Trailblazers Board of Directors of a member from your

county/city. (1), "One representative each appointed by the governing body of the City of Norton and the Counties of

Buchanan, Dickenson, Lee, Russell, Scott, Tazewell, and Wise to serve terms of three years." Presently, the Board

requires a new appointment from your locality.

The Spearhead Trailblazers Board of Directors is  a critical decision-making body that aids as a 401C3 for the

Authority that has a direct impact on our region. The organizations goals and objectives are set by the Board and your

appointed Board member is your locality's voice in all the Authority's efforts during his or her tenure.

Please forward your appointment to Ms. Melissa Slemp Rose, Executive Director, Southwest Regional Recreation

Authority, 11325 Norton Coeburn Rd, Coeburn, Virginia 24230. Thank you in advance for your kind attention and

assistance. We look forward to building closer relationships and increasing outdoor recreation in our region.

Sincerely,

Mellssa'Slemp Rose
Executive Director

MR/cmi



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
    Board of Supervisors   Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Attorney 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

        Meeting: 2/6/23         6:00 PM 
 

 
County Attorney Reports  

 
1. “Resolution and Ordinance Prohibiting the Location and Operation of                               

Abortion Clinics Within The Boundaries of Russell County, Virginia”………..C-1 
 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Board Discretion. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Motion Required.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various 

 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 











 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item D-1 – D-8 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

                     Meeting: 2/6/23         6:00 PM 
 
 

 

 
 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
The County Administrator Reports & Request for February 2023: 

 
REPORTS 

 
1. 2023 VACo & Virginia Rural Center Rural Caucus Reception………….....…….D-1 

 
2. DCR Clinch River State Park Master Plan Meeting (2/15/2023)………………….D-2 

 
3. CPRHA Environmental Review Exemption/Categorically Excluded Projects..D-3  

 
4. VDOT Monthly Road System Report………..………………………………………..D-4 

 
REQUESTS 

  
5. VDOT Notice of Rte. 19 & Rte. 58 Property Abandonment Request…………...D-5 

 
6. DOF Forest Sustainability Fund (FSF) – $5,240.27……………..………………....D-6 

 
7. DCJS VSTOP Grant - $62,009………………………………………………………….D-7 

 
8. Virginia Federation of Humane Societies Animal Award 2023 - $10,000..…….D-8 

 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 
• Various 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/
http://www.russellcountyva.us/


A d o p t e d  b y  V A C o
M e m b e r s h i p  o n

N o v e m b e r  1 5 ,  2 0 2 2

VACo 2023
LEGISLATIVE

PROGRAM
For the 2023 General Assembly Session



   
 

 1  
 

2023 Legislative Program 1 

Virginia Association of Counties 2 

 3 

Table of Contents 4 
 5 
 6 
 7 
Economic Development and Planning    p. 2 8 
 9 
 10 
Education         p. 4 11 
 12 
 13 
Energy         p.7 14 
 15 
 16 
Environment and Agriculture     p. 8 17 
 18 
 19 
Finance          p. 11 20 
 21 
 22 
General Government       p. 14 23 
 24 
 25 
Health and Human Services      p. 17 26 
 27 
 28 
Transportation         p. 22 29 
 30 
 31 
 32 
 33 
 34 
 35 
 36 
 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 
  44 



1/23/23, 10:53 AM Master Planning for Clinch River State Park

https://www.dcr.virginia.gov/recreational-planning/cr-masterplan 1/2

 Department of Conservation and Recreation Department of Conservation and Recreation

Conserve. Protect. Enjoy.Conserve. Protect. Enjoy.
Home  » Recreational Planning  » Master Planning for Clinch River State Park

Master Planning for Clinch River State Park
The Virginia Department of Conservation and Recreation (DCR), which manages Virginia’s 41 state parks, is currently preparing a
comprehensive master plan for the new Clinch River State Park, a process required for all state parks by the state.

Supporting the recreational needs of the community requires the community’s input. To gather this feedback, and as part of the next
steps in the process, DCR will hold a public meeting Wednesday, Feb. 15, from 6-7:30 p.m. at the Russell County Government
Center, 139 Highland Drive in Lebanon, Virginia, to present the draft master plan for the park to the public for their review and
comment.

Written feedback will also be accepted through March 17, 2023. Written comments may be emailed to
samantha.wangsgard@dcr.virginia.gov; faxed to 804-786-9240; or mailed to Virginia Department of Conservation and Recreation,
Attn: Samantha Wangsgard, 600 E. Main St., 24th Floor, Richmond, Virginia 23219.

Located along the Clinch River in Southwest Virginia, the park is Virginia’s first blueway state park, or recreational water trail system. It
is made up of anchor properties connected by multiple canoe and kayak access points along the scenic river.

This meeting follows a public meeting held virtually in December 2021, and a public input survey that closed in January 2022.

Once completed, this will result in a master plan that will guide the long-range plan for infrastructure, amenities, roads, funding and
staffing at the park and will be updated every ten years.

Registration for this is encouraged but not required.

REGISTER NOW

Prior materials from the December 2021 public input meeting, which included an introduction to state parks and the master planning
process, the site and site analysis, summary of the advisory committee meetings, the park’s purpose statement and goals/objectives,
and next steps in the process are included below:

Clinch River State Park Master Plan Meeting PowerPoint (PDF)
Agenda and Maps (PDF)

View the meeting:

https://www.dcr.virginia.gov/
https://www.dcr.virginia.gov/recreational-planning/
https://www.dcr.virginia.gov/recreational-planning/cr-masterplan
mailto:samantha.wangsgard@dcr.virginia.gov
https://events.r20.constantcontact.com/register/eventReg?oeidk=a07ejm0gsx7a2ba2833&oseq=&c=&ch=
https://www.dcr.virginia.gov/recreational-planning/document/CRSP-Public-Input-meeting-slideshow.pdf
https://www.dcr.virginia.gov/recreational-planning/document/Clinch-River-21-12-16-Public-Input-Agenda-Packet.pdf


1/23/23, 10:53 AM Master Planning for Clinch River State Park

https://www.dcr.virginia.gov/recreational-planning/cr-masterplan 2/2

Please email any questions or comments about the Master Planning efforts for Clinch River State Park to
samantha.wangsgard@dcr.virginia.gov.

Clinch River State Park Master Plan Meeting Dec. 15, 2021Clinch River State Park Master Plan Meeting Dec. 15, 2021

Virginia Department of Conservation and Recreation
600 East Main Street, 24th floor | Richmond, VA 23219-2094 | 804-786-6124

Please send website comments to web@dcr.virginia.gov
Address general inquiries to pcmo@dcr.virginia.gov
Copyright © 2023, All Rights Reserved
Last Modified: Thursday, 19 January 2023, 04:09:54 PM

mailto:samantha.wangsgard@dcr.virginia.gov
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=aYG4fcykiIY
https://www.dcr.virginia.gov/
mailto:web@dcr.virginia.gov
mailto:pcmo@dcr.virginia.gov


U.S. Department of Housing and Urban                                                               
Development
451 Seventh Street, SW
Washington, DC  20410
www.hud.govespanol.hud.gov

Page 1 of 1

Environmental Review
for Activity/Project that is Exempt or

Categorically Excluded Not Subject to Section 58.5
Pursuant to 24 CFR Part 58.34(a) and 58.35(b)

This is a suggested format that may be used by Responsible Entities to document completion of an 
Exempt or Categorically Excluded Not Subject to Section 58.5 environmental review.

Project Information

Project Name: Cumberland Plateau Regional Housing Authority

Responsible Entity: Russell County

Grant Recipient (if different than Responsible Entity): Cumberland Plateau Regional 
Housing Authority

State/Local Identifier: VA

Preparer: Keith L. Viers

Certifying Officer Name and Title:  Lonzo Lester, Russell County Administrator

Consultant (if applicable): N/A

Project Location: Russell County

Description of the Proposed Project [24 CFR 58.32; 40 CFR 1508.25]: N/A

Level of Environmental Review Determination:

   Activity/Project is Exempt per 24 CFR 58.34(a): ________________________________



Project Name Project Locality and StateHEROS Number

Page 2 of 3

   Activity/Project is Categorically Excluded Not Subject To §58.5 per 24 CFR 58.35(b): 
____________________

Funding Information

Grant Number HUD Program Funding Amount 
VA36P029501-23 CFP $651,261

Estimated Total HUD Funded Amount: $651,261

This project anticipates the use of funds or assistance from another Federal agency in 
addition to HUD in the form of (if applicable): N/A

Estimated Total Project Cost (HUD and non-HUD funds) [24 CFR 58.32(d)]: N/A

Compliance with 24 CFR §50.4 and §58.6 Laws and Authorities
Record below the compliance or conformance determinations for each statute, executive order, or 
regulation.  Provide credible, traceable, and supportive source documentation for each authority. Where 
applicable, complete the necessary reviews or consultations and obtain or note applicable permits of 
approvals. Clearly note citations, dates/names/titles of contacts, and page references. Attach additional 
documentation as appropriate.

Compliance Factors: 
Statutes, Executive Orders, 
and Regulations listed at 24 
CFR 50.4 and 58.6                              

Are formal 
compliance 

steps or 
mitigation 
required?

Compliance determinations 

STATUTES, EXECUTIVE ORDERS, AND REGULATIONS LISTED AT 24 CFR §58.6
Airport Runway Clear Zones 
and Accident Potential Zones 

24 CFR Part 51 Subpart D

Yes     No

     

Coastal Barrier Resources 

Coastal Barrier Resources Act, as 
amended by the Coastal Barrier 
Improvement Act of 1990 [16 
USC 3501]

Yes     No

     

Flood Insurance  

Flood Disaster Protection Act of 

Yes     No

     



Project Name Project Locality and StateHEROS Number

Page 3 of 3

1973 and National Flood 
Insurance Reform Act of 1994 
[42 USC 4001-4128 and 42 USC 
5154a]

Mitigation Measures and Conditions [40 CFR 1505.2(c)] 
Summarize below all mitigation measures adopted by the Responsible Entity to reduce, avoid, or 
eliminate adverse environmental impacts and to avoid non-compliance or non-conformance with 
the above-listed authorities and factors. These measures/conditions must be incorporated into 
project contracts, development agreements, and other relevant documents. The staff responsible 
for implementing and monitoring mitigation measures should be clearly identified in the 
mitigation plan.

Law, Authority, or Factor Mitigation Measure

N/A

Preparer Signature: __________________________________________Date:01/03/2023

Name/Title/Organization: Keith L.Viers, Executive Director, Cumberland Plateau Regional 
Housing Authority

Responsible Entity Agency Official Signature: 

__________________________________________________________Date:01/03/2023

Name/Title: Lonzo Lester, Russell County Administrator

This original, signed document and related supporting material must be retained on file by the 
Responsible Entity in an Environmental Review Record (ERR) for the activity/project (ref: 24 
CFR Part 58.38) and in accordance with recordkeeping requirements for the HUD program(s). 
 

























 

 

 

 

 

Russell County BOS 

VDOT Update  
February  6, 2023 

Board Action Requests 

VDOT is not seeking any Board action this month in the form of a resolution. We do look forward to input from the 

County regarding the discontinuance vs abandonment of Route 871.  

 

Maintenance Activities   
 

Maintenance crews are actively involved in a variety of activities including: 

 Snow  Removal: While the County has not received a substantial snow / winter weather event, there have 

been multiple minor events and forecasts indicating precipitation with temperatures at or near freezing. 

These events and forecast have kept resources allocated to winter weather operations 

 Brush cutting was completed on segment(s) of Route 67 and 678. 

 Maintenance work (spreading gravel, blading) was conducted on routes 618, 621, 661, 678, 712, 744, 

746, 801 and 936. 

 Ditching and high shoulder removed on segments or Routes 632 and 732.   

 

Maintenance Activities Planned 

 Slope stabilization on Routes 600 and 712 

 Culvert replacement & associated ditching on Route 730 (Requires permit) 

 Boom ax work on various routes throughout the County.  

 Slide repair on Routes 622 and 624. 

 Installation of sand barrels between guardrail and signal pole at the Wal-Mart entrance Route 19 

intersection; need to coordinate with guardrail repair. 

 

Rural Rustic / 6 Year Plan Proiects 

Work on Blanch Davis Road (Route 606) has been completed with the exception of paving, which is planned for 

the 2023 paving season. 

North Cedar Acres is a small project (adding approximately 370 feet) of road utilizing residual funding from 

previously completed projects and is proposed for completion as weather allows, with paving proposed for the 

spring of 2023. 

 

 



 

 

 

 

Non — VDOT Projects 

Pure Salmon Proiect 

No new information to report this month, a recent site visit indicated progress continues on the construction of 

the connection to Route 19. The residency understands overhead utility relocation is underway which will allow 

final excavation to be completed to make the connection to Route 19. 

 

Three Rivers Destination Center 

No new activity this month on this project. 

 

Miscellaneous 

Residency staff stand ready to respond to inquiries and provide explanations but also offer the 1800-FOR-ROAD 

call to enter work order requests into VDOT's tracking system. 

 

 







1/4/23, 1:11 PM Russell County Mail - Forest Sustainability Fund Award

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=28e834d897&view=pt&search=all&permthid=thread-f%3A1754108236659988200%7Cmsg-f%3A1754108236659… 1/1

Lonzo Lester <lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us>

Forest Sustainability Fund Award
1 message

Jones, Amanda (DOF) <Amanda.Jones@dof.virginia.gov> Wed, Jan 4, 2023 at 10:59 AM
To: "Lester, Lonzo" <lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us>

Lonzo Lester

Russell County

 

Thank you for submitting an application for a portion of the Forest Sustainability Fund. The Fund was a result of legislation introduced in the
2022 Virginia General Assembly by Delegate Robert Bloxom and Senator Frank Ruff. Now part of the Code of Virginia (§ 58.1-3242.1 ), it
assists localities that provide a lower forest land tax rate to landowners by restoring a portion of forgone revenues back to localities. This
year, 68 localities submitted applications with a forgone revenue amount of nearly $72.5 million dollars.

I am pleased to notify you that your locality will be receiving a proportional share of this year’s funding in the amount of $5240.27. This
amount was determined by dividing your reported forgone revenue by the total forgone revenue of all the localities that applied, then
multiplying that fraction by the amount budgeted for this year ($1 million). A check will be issued by the Treasurer of Virginia or sent by
electronic means if your locality had previously set up electronic payments with the Virginia Department of Forestry.

Per the Code, monies from the Fund must be used solely for public education generally or for projects related to outdoor recreation or forest
conservation. Unfortunately, we have not received more specific guidance than this, except that these monies cannot be used for staff or other
costs associated with administering the forest land use tax program in the locality.

As this is the first year of the Forest Sustainability Fund, we are interested in your feedback regarding the application process and your
tentative plans for using your portion of the Fund monies. Please take a few minutes to complete this Forest Sustainability Fund Post-Award
Survey to help us collect your feedback.

Again, I am pleased that you will be receiving a portion of the Fund and thank you and other staff in your locality for your time and effort
applying for this funding.

Sincerely,

Rob Farrell

State Forester

http://law.lis.virginia.gov/vacode/58.1-3242.1
https://forms.office.com/Pages/ResponsePage.aspx?id=qeUKYsFOoE-GQV2fOGxzCWdxDWPsOK1LsdFUwCa9mbtUQlRUMlIwVVpQR1hRR0VUQTc5T1lNMVhVMy4u


1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
January 12, 2023 

 

 

Lonzo Lester 

County Administrator 

137 Highland Drive, Ste. A 

Lebanon,Virginia 24266 

 

RE: CY 22-23 VSTOP Formula Grant Program for Continuation Applicants 

 

Dear Lonzo Lester: 

 

Congratulations on being a recipient of the above referenced grant program! Your DCJS grant 

award number is 23-S4705VA21 and was approved for a total award of $62,009, funded in part 

through Award Numbers 15JOVW-21-GG-00568-STOP and 15JOVW-22-GG-00455-STOP. The 

project period is 1/1/2023 through 12/31/2023. 

 

Included with this letter is a Statement of Grant Award/Acceptance (SOGA). Please note hard 

copies of the General Special Conditions, as well as the Reporting Requirements and Projected Due 

Dates, are now referred to as Conditions and Requirements and will be posted online at 

https://www.dcjs.virginia.gov/grants/grant-requirements within the next two weeks.       

 

In addition to the general Special Conditions, there may be grant specific Special Conditions 

related to your Grant Award called Encumbrances. If there are any, please submit documents related 

to your Encumbrances via the On-line Grants Management System (OGMS) at 

https://ogms.dcjs.virginia.gov/. If you have not previously done so, you must register in order to use 

this web-based system. The instructions on Registering for a New Account and Submitting Action Item 

Encumbrances are posted here https://www.dcjs.virginia.gov/grants/ogms-training-resources along 

with other resources and training videos. All registrants will be approved within 3 – 5 business days.  

 

We will be happy to assist you in any way we can to assure your project’s success. To indicate 

your acceptance of the award and conditions, please sign the included SOGA and return it 

electronically within the next 60 days to grantsmgmt@dcjs.virginia.gov. If you have questions, contact 

your DCJS Grant Monitor Sharon Reed at (804) 658-8179 or via email at 

sharon.reed@dcjs.virginia.gov.  

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

      Jackson Miller 



2 

 

STATEMENT OF GRANT AWARD (SOGA) 
 

Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services 

1100 Bank Street, 12th Floor 

Richmond, Virginia 23219 

Project Director Project Administrator Finance Officer 
 

Steven Dye 

Sheriff 

79 Rogers Avenue 

P.O. Box 338 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

276-889-8033 

sheriff@russellcountyva.us 

 

Lonzo Lester 

County Administrator 

137 Highland Drive, Ste. A 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

276-889-8000 

lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us 

 

Alicia McGlothlin 

Treasurer 

137 Highland Drive 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

276-889-8028 

rctreas@bvunet.net 

 

*Please indicate your ICR in the space provided, if applicable. As the duly authorized 

representative, the undersigned, having received the Statement of Grant Awards (SOGA) and 

reviewing the Special Conditions, hereby accepts this grant and agree to the conditions and 

provisions of all other Federal and State laws and rules and regulations that apply to this award.  

      

Signature:  ______________________________  
        Authorized Official (Project Administrator) 

      

Title:   ______________________________ 

 

 

Date:   ______________________________ 

CY 22-23 VSTOP Formula Grant Program for Continuation Applicants 

Subgrantee:   Russell     

DCJS Grant Number:  23-S4705VA21   UEI Number:   WMRHA68SMK19 

Grant Start Date:  1/1/2023   Grant End Date: 12/31/2023 

Federal Grant Number:  15JOVW-21-GG-00568-STOP and 15JOVW-22-GG-00455-STOP 

Federal Awardee:  VAWO 

Federal Catalog Number: 16.588 

Project Description:  To increase the apprehension, prosecution, and adjudication of persons commiting 

violent crimes against women. 

Federal Start Date: 7/1/2021 and 7/1/2022 

Federal Funds:   $24,882   

 

Local Match:   $37,127 

 

Total Budget:   $62,009 
 

Indirect Cost Rate: _____%  *If applicable 

 
















































































































































	Public Hearing.pdf
	Meeting: 2/6/23      6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Presentations.pdf
	Meeting: 2/6/23      6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Organizational Meeting.pdf
	Meeting: 2/6/23    6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Presentations - Attorney.pdf
	Meeting: 2/6/23         6:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 2/6/23         6:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):
	ATTACHMENTS:




